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MATT ROSENDALE FOR MONTANA
Errol Galt, Treasurer
P.O. Box 4907
Helena, MT 596044

Covrpr,¡,lNt

This complaint is filed pursuant to 52 U.S.C. $ 30109(a)(1) and is based on information and

belief that the National Rifle Association of America Institute for Legislative Action ("NRA-

ILA") (ID: C90013301) and Matt Rosendale for Montana (ID: C00548289) have violated the

Federal Election Campaign Act ("FECA"),52 U.S.C. $ 30101, et seq.

Montana U.S. Senate candidate Matt Rosendale stated at a fundraising event that the NRA-

ILA's politicat director, Chris Cox, had told him that the group would be making

expenditures supporting Rosendale, and Rosendale accurately described both the content of
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the NRA-ILA's communications and their timing, even though the communications had not

yet been disseminated and would not be disseminated until weeks later. Rosendale's

statements provide reason to believe that he assented to the NRA-ILA's planned spending.

The NRA-ILA then spent $400,000 on independent expenditures attacking Rosendale's

opponent.

Moreover, the NRA-ILA paid the political consulting firm, Starboard Strategic, Inc.

("Starboard") for those independent expenditures, while at the same time Matt Rosendale for

Montana contracted with the consulting firm OnMessage, Inc. ("OnMessage"), which is

functionally indistinguishable from Starboard; therefore, there is reason to believe that

OnMessage/Starboard used strategic information derived from its work for the Rosendale

campaign to develop the NRA-ILA advertisements expressly advocating against his

opponent.

As a result, for these two separate and independent reasons, there is reason to believe that the

NRA-ILA made illegal, unreported, and excessive in-kind contributions to Matt Rosendale

for Montana in the form of coordinated communications, I 1 C.F.R. $ 109.21, in violation of

FECA's source prohibitions, reporting requirements, and contribution limits.

"If the Commission, upon receiving a complaint . . . has reason to believe that a person has

committed, or is about to commit, a violation of IFECA] . . . [t]he Commission shall make an

investigation of such alleged violation . . . ;'52 U.S.C. $ 30109(a)(2) (emphasis added); see

qlso 11 C.F.R. $ 111.4(Q.

Campaign Legal Center ("CLC") is a nonpartisan, nonprofit 501(cX3) organization whose

mission is to protect and strengthen the U.S. democratic process through litigation and other

4.
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legal advocacy. CLC participates in judicial and administrative matters throughout the nation

regarding campaign finance, voting rights, redistricting, and government ethics issues.

Giffords is a nonpartisan, nonprofit 501(c)(4) organization headquartered in W'ashington,

D.C.l Founded by former Congresswoman Gabrielle Giffords and retired Navy combat

veteran and NASA astronaut Captain Mark Kelly, Giffords researches, writes, and proposes

policies designed to reduce gun violence and mobilizes voters and lawmakers in support of

safer gun laws. Giffords educates political candidates about issues and policies related to gun

violence, and endorses candidates for local, state, and federal office who support strong gun-

violence-prevention laws. Many candidates supported by Giffords, including the opponents

of Thom Titlis and Corey Gardner in their 2014 carryaigns for U.S. Senate and the opponent

of Ron Johnson in his 2016 campaign for U.S. Senate, are opposed by the National Rifle

Association Political Victory Fund ("NRA-PVF") and NRA-ILA.2

Flcrs

Matt Rosendale is a candidate for U.S. Senate in Montana. Matt Rosendale for Montana is

his authori zed campaign committee.3

t Giffords was founded in20l3 under the name Americans for Responsible Solutions, and was renamed

Giffords in October 2017.2 Giffords has a sister organization, Giffords Law Center to Prevent Gun Violence, a nonprofit, nonpartisan

501(c)(3) based in San Francisco that works to research, write, enact, and defend laws, policies, and programs

proven to reduce gun violence and save lives. Giffords' political action committee, Giffords PAC, works to support

candidates and elected officials who promote policies to reduce gun violence and oppose the influence of the gun

industry and the NRA, including by making political contributions and independent expenditures.3 Matt Rosendale for Montana, Statement of Organization, FEC Form l, at2 (amended July 13, 2018),
http://docquerv.fec.sovlpdfl236l20l807180200564236/201807180200564236.pdf.

J
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9 The NRA-ILA is a tax-exempt corporation organized under Section 501(cXa) of the Internal

Revenue Code that describes itself as "the lobbying arm of the NRA."4 It reports independent

expenditures to the Commission.s Chris Cox is the NRA-ILA's executive director.6

At a July 2018 event in Washington, D.C., Rosendale was asked whether oooutside groups

[have] started spending on your behalf," and he replied:

10.

Yes. So, the uh, the Club for Growth has already started. lJmm, there's another group that
has already started. I can't even remember the name of it now. They just started recently.
Outside groups have already started to come in. I fully expect that the U.S. Chamber is
gonna come in, and I fully expect the NRA is gonna come in. I think both of them are

coming in, probably right here in August, sometime.T

1 1. The questioner stated, ooThis is a big race for the NRA," and Rosendale replied

Yes. The, the uh, Supreme Court confirmations are big-that's what sent the NRA over
the line. Because in'12, with Denny fRehberg, a Montana U.S. Senate candidate] they
stayed out. Chris Cox told me-he was like 'well, we're gonna be in this race."'8

12. Beginning on September 6,2018, the NRA-ILA disseminated a total of $404,496 in

independent expenditures opposing Rosendale's opponent, Jon Tester, according to its

reports filed with the Commission.e

(last
5

About, NtrroNer- RrFLE AssocrATroN INsrrrur¡ r'on Lecrslerwe AcrIoN, https://www.nraila.org/aboul
visited Sept. 13, 2018).

National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Financial Summary, 2015-16,
https://www.fec. eov/datalcommittee/C900 I 330 l/?cycle:20 16.u Chris W. Cox, NerroNer, R:rLs AssocrATroN INsrrrurs ron Lpcrslerve AcnoN,
httos://www.nraila.org/about/chris-cox-nra/ (last visited Sept. 13, 2018).
7 Matt Rosendale on NRA support, SousoClouo (uploaded Sept. 13,2018), https://soundcloud.com/user-
379527848/matt-rosendale-on-nra-suppoÍ see also Lachlan Markay, Exclusive: Audio Reveals Potentially lllegal
Coordination Between NRA and Montana Senate Hopeful Matt Rosendale, Detlv Bs¡sr (Sept. 13, 2018),
https://www.thedailvbeast.com/exclusive-audio-reveals-potentiallv-illeeal-coordination-between-ffa-and-montana-
senate-hopefu l-matt-rosendale?reËwrap.s Id.e National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Report of Independent Expenditures Made and

Contributions Received, FEC Form 5, at 2 (filed Sept. 7, 2018),
http://docquery.fec.sov/pdfl388/201809079121597388/201809079121597388.pdf.
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The advertisement, which began running in the midst of confrmation hearings for U.S.

Supreme Court nominee Brett Kavanaugh, criticized Tester for his votes on Supreme Court

nomlnees. l0

Facts Relevønt to OnMessøge and Størboard Strategíc

The NRA-ILA's independent expenditures disseminated on September 6,2018 consisted of a

$383,196 disbursement to Starboard Strategic for "Television advertising," and $21,300 to

RedPrint Strategy LLC for ooProduction costs for television advertisement."ll

Matt Rosendale for Montana has reported5445,367 in disbursements to OnMessage for

o'media" and "political strategy consulting," as of September 13,2018, according to its

reports filed with the Commission.12

OnMessage is a political consulting firm that has performed contracting work for dozens of

campaigns and political committees. The Washington Post recently called OnMessage o'a

powerhouse GOP consulting firm."l3

r0 NRA, Defend Freedom. Deþat Two-Faced Tester, YouTues (Sep. 6, 2018),

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v:AuqwhCm MZs ("In all three votes on Supreme Court Justices, Tester sided

with Chuck Schumer and the anti-gun liberal left. AGAINST your right to self-defense. What Jon Tester says in

Montana, isn't what he does in Washington, D.C..."); see also NRA Announces Six-Figure Ad Campaígn Against

Sen. Tester,NRA-ILA (Sept. 6, 2018), https://www.nraila.ors/afticles/20180906/ffa-announces-six-figure-ad-

campai gn-against- sen-tester.
rr National Rifle Association lnstitute for Legislative Action, Report of Independent Expenditures Made and

Contributions Received, FEC Form 5, at2 (fled Sept. 7, 2018),
http://docquery.fec.eov/pdfl3 88/201809079121597388/201809079121597388.pd#navpanes:0.L2 Mafi Rosendale for Montana, Disbursements to OnMessage,20lT-2018,
https://www.fec.eov/dataldisbursements/?two vear_transaction period:2O18&data-tvpe:processed&committee-id
:C00548289&recipient_name:onmessaee&min date=01%2F01%2F2017&max-date:09%2F13%2F2018 (last

visited Sept. 13, 2018).13 James Hohmann, The Daily 202: Trump voters stqy loyal because theyfeel disrespected, Wesu. Posr
(May 14,2018), https://www.washinetonpost.com/news/powerposlpaloma/daily-202/2018/05/14ldaily-202-trump-
voters-stav-lo-'¿al-because-thel¡-feel-disrespected/5af8aac53Ofb0425887994cc/?utm-term:.8cfa8c40d816.
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OnMessage was registered in Virginia on April 13,2005,14 and was incorporated in

Maryland on April 20,2006.rs Its website provides detailed information about its staff, past

clients, and portfolio of work.16

In the 2012 election cycle, the NRA-ILA reported paying OnMessage over $3.5 million for

independent expenditures described as "Advertising Expenses." 17

On March 22,2013, Starboard was incorporated in Virginia by OnMessage officials.ls The

incorporation certificate lists five directors: Curtis Anderson, Wesley Anderson, Bradley

Todd, Graham Shafer, and Timothy Teepell.le At the time, three of those directors-

Anderson, Anderson, and Todd-were also directors at OnMessage.20 By the following year,

2014, Shafer and Teepell had been added to OnMessage's board, as was Orrin "Guy"

Harrison;2r Harrison, in turn, was added to Starboard's board the year after, in 2015.22 Both

Starboard's and OnMessage's boards still consist of these same six directors (Anderson,

t4 OnMessage, Inc., Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation Commission,
https://sccefile.scc.vireinia.gov/Business/0636043 (last visited July 16, 2018).
15 OnMessage, Inc.: General Inþrmation, Maryland Business Express,

https://eeov.maryland.sov/BusinessExpressÆntiwsearch/Businesslnformation/Fl 1249893 (last visited July 16,

20 r 8).16 ONMsssacs,INC.,https://onmessaseinc.com/(lastvisitedJuly 16,2018).t7 National Rifle Association lnstitute for Legislative Action, lndependent Expenditures to On Message, Inc.
(regularly scheduled reports), 20ll-12, https://www.fec.eov/datalindependent-
expenditureV?data_tl¿pe:processed&committee id:C70000716&committee id:C90013301&cycle:2012&is notic

e:true&payee name:messase&mn date:01o/o2F0lo/o2F20ll&max date l2o/ffi3\WND. The address given

for OnMessage, Inc. is 815 Slaters Lane in Alexandria, Virginia, which was the firm's address atthattime. See

archived version of OnMessage.com (April 5,2012),
https://web.archive.ore/web/20120405025059/https://onmessaseinc.com (listing OnMessage's address at 815 Slaters

Lane). This is also the address on OnMessage's corporate registration. See OnMessage, Inc., Commonwealth of
Virginia State Corporation Commission, supra note 14.18 Articles of Incorporation: Starboard Strategic, Inc.,Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation
Commission (Mar.22,2013) (attached as Exhibit A).te Id.20 See 2013 Annual Report: OnMessage,lnc. Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation Commission
(Mar. 9, 2013) (attached as Exhibit B).2t See 2014 Annual Report: OnMessage, 1nc. Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation Commission
(Jun. 2, 2014) (attached as Exhibit C).22 See 2015 Annual Report: Starboard Strategic, Inc. Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation
Commission (Feb.24,2015) (attached as Exhibit D).

6
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Anderson, Todd, Shafer, Teepell, and Harrison).23 Starboard's registered agent, Craig M.

Palik, is also the registered agent for OnMessage Holdings, Inc.2a

According to a recent POLITICO article, "fi]nternal emails indicate executives toggled

between roles" at both Starboard and OnMessage,and that "none of Starboard's partners has

publicly affiliated himself with the company; four of them have Linkedln pages, for instance,

and their profiles only mention OnMessage.'2s

In the 2014 election cycle, the NRA-ILA and the NRA's PAC, the National Rifle Association

Political Victory Fund ("NRA-PVF") paid Starboard approximately $20.5 million combined:

the NRA-ILA paid Starboard $6.6 million for independent expenditures,26 and the NRA-PVF

paid Starboard$12.54 million for independent expenditures27 and $1.38 million in other

disbursements.2s Neither the NRA-ILA nor NRA-PVF reported any payments to OnMessage

during The 201 4 cycle.2e

23 See Stqrboard Strategic, Inc., 2018 Annual Report (Feb. 24,201 8) (attached as Exhibit E); OnMessage,

Inc.,2018 Annual Report (Feb.27,2018) (attached as Exhibit F).
24 

^See 
Exhibit A; see also OnMessage Holdings, Inc.,Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation

Commission, https://sccefile.scc.vireinia.eov/Business/0770961 (last visited June 15, 2018).
25 Mike Spies, The Mystery Firm That Became the NRA's Top Election Consultqnt, PoLInco (July 13, 2018),

https://www.politico.com/masazine/storv/2018/07113/mystery-firm-nra-consultant-219004.26 National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. (regularly scheduled reports), 2013-14, https://www.fec.eov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data_tl¡pe:processed&committee_id:C70000716&committee-id:C90013301&is-notice:false&pave
e-name:starboard&mín date:01%o2F01Yo2F2013&max-date:l2o/o2F31Yo2F2014.27 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. (regularly scheduled reports), 2013-l4,https://www.fec.eov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data_tvpe:processed&committee id=C00053553&is notice:false&pavee name:starboard&min-dat
e:0lYo2F01Yo2F20l3&max-date=l2Yo2F31Yo2F20l4.28 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Disbursements to Starboard Strategic, lnc.,
2013-14,
https://www.fec.eov/data/disbursements/?two_vear_transaction period:2O14&data-tvpe:processed&committee-id
:C00053553&recinient name:starboard&min date:01Yo2F0l%2F2013&max date:12%2F31%2F2014.
2e The NRA-PVF and NRA-ILA may have continued using OnMessage for some of its work aside from
federal independent expenditures. For example, OnMessage was a finalist for a Reed Award for its production of the

NRA-ILA's 2014 ad, "Insult." 2015 Reed Awqrd Finalisls, Campaigns & Elections,
httos ://www. camoai srsandelections. -insider/20 1 -5 -reed-award-fi nalists (last visited June I 5, 20 I 8).

The ad attacked New York Cþ mayor Michael Bloomberg and ran nationally on cable television, as well as on

broadcast stations in Colorado. Fredreka Schouten, Exclusive: NRA lqunches anti-Bloomberg ad campaign,US{
ToDAy (Aug. 19, 2014), https://www.usatoda]¡.com/storv/news/politics/2014108/ l9lnra-ad-campaign-tareets-
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The NRA-ILA reported paying Starboard for ooAdvertising Expenses" in the2014 cycle. The

address reported for each Starboard disbursement was 817 Slaters Lane in Alexandria,

Virginia,30 the same address as OnMessage's Virginia office.31

The NRA-PVF reported paying Starboard for expenses related to television, radio, and digital

advertising in the 2014 cycle. The address reported for each Starboard disbursement was 705

Melvin Avenue #105 in Annapolis, Maryland,32 the same address and suite number as

OnMessage's Maryland office.33

The NRA's 2014 "focus" included "three major Senate races," and was aimed at ooboosting

Republican Senate challengers in Arkansas, Colorado and North Carolina," according to

published reports.3a Reports filed with the Commission show that the NRA-PVF supported

candidates in these U.S. Senate races-Tom Cotton, Cory Gardner, and Thom Tillis-with

independent expenditures contracted through Starboard. The NRA-ILA also supported two of

these candidates-Gardner and Tillis-with independent expenditures contracted through

Starboard. At or around the same time, these same three candidates were contracting with

OnMessage for advertising and media consulting.3s

a) North Carolina U.S. Senate Candidate Thom Tillis:

michael-bloombers.l14296467l. However, OnMessage also took credit for federal independent expenditures for
which the NRA-PVF and NRA-ILA had paid Starboard. See infra 11[ 30-31.
30 See, e.g., National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Itemized Independent Expenditures,

January 3 I Year-End Report, http ://docq uery. fec. qov/cei-bin/fecims/? 1 5 9 5 0 5 243 5 9'
3r ONMsss¡cn, INc., https://onmessageinc.com/ (last visited June 15, 2018).
32 See, e.g.,National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Itemized Independent

Expenditures, Monthly Report for September 2014,758, http://docquerv.fec.gov/cei-bir/fecimg/? 14952928564.
33 ONMessecn,INC.,@(lastvisitedJune 15,2018).
34 Kevin Bohn, NRAfocuses on three major Senate røces, CNN (Sept. 17, 2014),

https://www.cnn.com/2014/09/17lpolitics/nra-senate-races/index.html.3s Our Clients, ONMsssecp, INc., https://onmessageinc.com/our-clients/ (last visited June 15, 2018). In
addition to these three senatorial candidates, Florida gubernatorial candidate Rick Scott also hired OnMessage in
2014 andthere is evidence that Starboard was simultaneously producing advertisements supporting Scott on behalf
of the NRA (although Florida law does not require groups making independent expenditures to disclose who they
are supporting).,See Spies, supra note 25.

8
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i. The NRA-PVF paid $2.3 million to Starboard for independent

expenditures supporting Tillis or opposing his opponent,36 and the NRA-

ILA paid Starboard $812,658 for Tillis independent expenditures.3T

ii. Tillis's authorized campaign committee, the Thom Tillis Committee,

reported paying OnMessage $6.6 million during the same cycle for

"advertising" and "media consulting."3s

iii. The Thom Tillis Committee reported disbursements to OnMessage at the

address 705 Melvin Ave. #105 in Annapolis, Maryland.3e The NRA-PVF

also reported disbursements to Starboard at this address in its reports in the

2014 cycle. including for its independent expenditures supporting Tillis.ao

iv. OnMessage Founding Partner and Starboard Director Bradley Todd was

described in news reports as a Tillis campaign oomedia strategist."al

b) Arkansas U.S. Senate Candidate Tom Cotton:

36 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. in support ofThom Tillis or opposing Kay Hagan (regularly scheduled reports), 2013-14,
https ://www. fec. sov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data_t]¡pe:processed&committee id:C00053553&is notice:false&payee-name:starboard&min dat

e:01yo2F0lYo2F20l3&max_date=l2Vio2F31Yo2F20l4.37 National Rifle Association of America lnstitute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to
Starboard Strategic, Inc. in support of Thom Tillis or opposing Kay Hagan (regularly scheduled reports), 2013'14,
https://www. fec. sov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data type:processed&committee-id=C90013301&is-notice:false&candidate id:S4NC00162&cand
idate_id:S8NC00239&pa)¡ee name:starboard&min date:01%2F01%2F2013&max date:12%2F31%2F2014.
38 Thom Tillis Committee, Disbursements to OnMessage, Inc., 2013-14,
https://www.fec.eov/data,/disbursements/?two_vear_transactionJeriod:2014&data-tvpe=processed&committee id
:C\0545'772&recinient name:onmessase&min date:0lo/o2F0l%2F2013&max date:12%2F31%2F2014.
3e See, e.g., Thom Tillis Committee, Report of Receipts and Disbursements, April l5 Quarterly Report,452,
(Apr. 15,2014) http://docquery.fec.eov/pdf/893/14020293893/14020293893.pdffnavpanes:O.40 ,See sources cited tf23.4t David Catanese, Z's Tillis v. Hagan in North Carolina, U.S. NEws & V/onro Rrrcnr (May 6,2014),
httos://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2014/05/06/thom-ti11is-advances-faces-kay-hagan-in-north-carolina-senate-
race.
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i. The NRA-PVF paid $1.6 million to Starboard for independent

expenditures supporting Cotton or opposing his opponent.42 The NRA-

ILA did not pay Starboard for any independent expenditures in this race.

ii. Cotton's authorized campaign committee, Cotton for Senate, reported

paying OnMessage $5.3 million during the same cycle for ooPlaced Media

& Production," "Polling Consulting," and related services.43

iii. Cotton for Senate reported disbursements to OnMessage at its Annapolis,

Maryland address.aa The NRA-PVF also reported disbursements to

Starboard at this address on its reports in the 2014 cycle, including for its

independent expenditures supporting Cotton.as

iv. OnMessage's/Starboard's Todd was described in news reports as an "ad

consultanf ' for Cotton' s campaign.a6

c) Colorado U.S. Senate Candidate Cory Gardner:

42 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. in support of Tom Cotton or opposing Mark Pryor (regularly scheduled reports), 2013-14,

https ://www. fec. eov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data Wpe:processed&committee-id:C00053553&is-notice:false&candidate-id:S04R00028&cand
idatùd:S44R00103&pa)¡ee_name:starboard&min_date:01%2F01%2F2013&max datrl2%2F31%2F2014.
43 Cotton for Senate, Disbursements to OnMessage, Inc., 2013-14,
https://www.fec.sov/data/disbursements/?two-vear transaction period:2O14&data-tvpe:Þrocessed&committeejd

=C00499988&recipient_name=onmessaee&min-date:01%2F01%2F2013&max-date=12%2F31%2F2014.44 See, e.g., Cotton for Senate, October 2014 Quarterly Report, FEC Form 3, at 1947, (Oct. 15, 2014)

http://docquery. fec. eov/cei-bin/fecims/? I 4020824088.45 ,See sources cited'1f23.46 Andrea Drusch, Inside Ad-Makers' Outrageous Arkansas Senate Strategy, THs ArreNrlc (Sept. 23,2014),
https://www.theatlantic.com/politics/archive/2014l09/inside-ad-makers-outraeeous-arkansas-senate-
strateey/435 168/.
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i. The NRA-PVF paid $2.6 million to Starboard for independent

expenditures supporting Gardner or opposing his opponent.4T The NRA-

ILA paid $529,186 to Starboard for Gardner independent expenditures.as

ii. Gardner's authorized campaign committee, Cory Gardner for Senate,

reported paying OnMessage $8.0 million during the same cycle for "media

production," ooweb services," and similar services.ag

iii. Cory Gardner for Senate reported disbursements to OnMessage at its

Alexandria, Virginia offices.sO The NRA-ILA also reported disbursements

to Starboard at this address on its reports in the 2014 cycle, including for

its independent expenditures supporting Gardner.5 I

iv. OnMessage's/Starboard's Todd was described in news reports as a

"consultant" for the Gardner campaign for OnMessage.52

47 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, hdependent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. in support of Cory Gardner or opposing Mark Udall (regularly scheduled reports), 2013'14,
https ://www. fec. eov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data_type:processed&committee id:C00053553&is notice:false&candidate id:S4CO00395&cand
idate_id:S8NM00184&pa)¡ee_name:starboard&min-date:01%2F01%2F2013&max-date=12%2F31%o2F2014.48 National Rifle Association of America Institute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to

Starboard Strategic, Inc. in support of Cory Gardner or opposing Mark Udall (regularly scheduled reports), 2013-14,

https ://www. fec. sov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data_tvpe:processed&committee-id:C900 1 330 I &is-notice:false&candidate-id:34CO00395&cand
ídate id:S$CO00l72&paveeJame:starboard&min_date:0lYo2F0lYo2F20l3&max date:l2Vo2F3lo/o2F2014.
4e Cory Gardner for Senate, Disbursements to OnMessage, Inc., 2013'14,
https://www.fec.eov/dataldisbursements/?two_vear transaction period:2O16&data-tvpe=þrocessed&committee id
:C00492454&recipient_name=onmessage&min-date:0lYo2F0lo/o2F2015&max date:l2Yo2F3lo/o2F2016.
50 See, e.g., Cory Gardner for Senate, 2014 Pre-General Report, FEC Form 3 at 556, (Oct.23,2014)
http://docquery.fec.eov/cei-bin/fecime/?14021141823. The committee reported paying OnMessage at 815 Slaters

Lane, the address on its corporate documents, .Íee sources cited lfl9, ratherthan 817 Slaters Lane, the address listed

on its website, onmessageinc.com.s1 See sources citedlB2.52 Alexis Levinson, Democrqts Try to Turn Cory Gardner into Todd Akin (Video), Roll Cel-l (July 15,

2014), https://www.rollcall.com/news/hobbv-lobby-mark-udall-cory-sardner-2014; Emily Schultheis, Republicans

Will Need to Sweep to Hold Onto Senate Maiority in 201 6, Tse Au.eNrtc (Sept. 16,2014),
https://www.theatlantic.com/politics/archive/2014/09/republicans-will-need-to-sweep-to-hold-onto-senate-majoritv-
in-201614576081.
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25 In the 2016 cycle, the NRA-PVF and the NRA-ILA together paid Starboard a total of

approximately $40.7 million: the NRA-PVF paid Starboard $17.0 million for independent

expenditures53 and $305,483 in other disbursements,s4 and the NRA-ILA paid Starboard

523.4 million for independent expenditures.ss Together, the NRA-PVF and the NRA-ILA

spent about $55 million on independent expenditures for the 2016 federal election;s6 the

payments to Starboard represented a majority of that spending.

The NRA-PVF reported paying Starboard for expenses related to television, radio, and digital

advertising in the 2016 cycle. As was the case in the previous cycle, the address reported on

each NRA-PVF disbursement to StarboardsT was the same address and suite number as

OnMessage' s Maryland office. s8

The NRA-ILA reported paying Starboard for ooAdvertising Expenses" in the 2016 cycle. As

was the case in the previous cycle, the address reported on each NRA-ILA disbursement to

Starboardse was the same address as OnMessage's Virginia office.óO

53 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, lndependent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. (regularly scheduled reports), 2015-16, https://www.fec.gov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data_t]rpe:processed&committee id:C00053553&is-notice:false&payee-name=starboard&min dat

e=01%o2F0l%o2F2015&max-date=12Yo2F3lo/o2F2016.54 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Disbursements to Starboard Strategic, Inc.,
20ts-76,
https://www. fec. sov/data/disbursements/?two_vear_transactionJeriod:20 16&data-tvpe-0rocessed&committee-id
:C00053553&recipient_name:onmessase&recipient_name=starboard&min-datF0l%2F01%2F2015&max-date:

t2%2F31%2F2016.55 National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to Starboard
Strategic, Inc. (regularly scheduled reports), 2015-16, https://www.fec.eov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data tvpe:processed&committee_id:C70000716&committee id:C90013301&is-notice:false&paye
e name:starboard&min date:0lo/o2F01Yo2F20l5&max-date:l2o/o2F3lo/o2F2016.s6 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Financial Summary,2015-16,
https://www.fec. sov/datalcommittee/C00053 553/?cycle:20 I 6.s7 See, e.g.,National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Itemized Independent
Expenditures, 30-Day Post-Election Report, 2016 General Election, 520, http://docquery.fec.gov/cei-
bin/ fecimsl 220 17 0 50490 53 5047 39 .s8 ONMssseca,INC.,https://onmessaseinc.com/(lastvisitedJune 15,2018).5e See, e.g., National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Itemized Independent Expenditures,
January 31 Year-End Report, 2016,90, http://docquery.fec.gov/cei-bir/fecims/?201701309041564790.60oNMgssece,INc',@(lastvisitedJunel5,2018).
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28 The NRA-PVF and the NRA-ILA paid Starboard for independent expenditures supporting

Wisconsin U.S. Senate candidate Ron Johnson, and Johnson's authorized campaign

committee also contracted with OnMessage for media expenditures.

a) Wisconsin U.S. Senate candidate Ron Johnson:

i. In the 2016 election cycle, the NRA-PVF paid $315,066 to Starboard for

independent expenditures supporting Johnson or opposing his opponent.6l

The NRA-ILA paid $48,537 to Starboard for Johnson independent

expenditures.62

ii. Johnson's authorized campaign committee, Ron Johnson for Senate, Inc.,

reported paying OnMessage $3.8 million during the same cycle for

'oplaced media," oostrategy consulting," and other services.63

iii. Ron Johnson for Senate Inc. reported disbursements to OnMessage at its

Annapolis, Maryland offices.6a The NRA-PVF also reported

disbursements to Starboard at this address on its reports in the 2016 cycle,

including for its independent expenditures supporting Johnson.65

61 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. in support ofRon Johnson or opposing Russ Feingold (regularly scheduled reports), 2015-16,

https ://www. fec. eov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data_tvpe:processed&committee id:C00053553&is-notice:false&candidate-id=S0WI00197&candi
date_id:S8Wl00026&pavee name:starboard&min-date:01%2F01%2F2015&max date:12%2F31%2F2016.
62 Nafional Rifle Association of America lnstitute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to

Starboard Strategic, Inc. in support ofRon Johnson or opposing Russ Feingold (regularly scheduled reporls), 2015-

I 6, https ://www. fec. gov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data_q¿pe:processed&committee-id:C90013301&is notice=false&candidate-id:S0Wl00197&candi
date id:S8Wl00026&pa)¡ee_name:starboard&min_date:01%2F01%2F2015&maxjate:12%2F31%2F2016.63 Ron Johnson for Senate Inc., Disbursements to OnMessage Inc., 2015-16,
https://wrnv.fec.eov/dataldisbursements/?two vear-transaction period:2016&data tvpe:processed&committeejd
:C00482984&recipient_name=onmessaee&min date=01%2F01%2F2015&max-date:12%2F31%2F2016.64 See, e.g., Ron Johnson for Senate, Inc., October 2015 Quarterly Reporl, FEC Form 3 at2663 (amended)

(Jan. 13,2017)http://docquerv.fec.gov/cei-bidfecimq/?201701190200016744.65 ,See sources cited fl26.
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29

30

iv. Bradley Todd was a consultant for Johnson's campaign who worked on

'omedia and polling" through August 2016.66

Neither the NRA-ILA nor NRA-PVF reported any disbursements to OnMessage in federal

races for the2016 election cycle.67 However, despite this, OnMessage was nominated for,

and won, industry awards for NRA-ILA and NRA-PVF ads that had been contracted through

Starboard.

Specifically, on January 20,2017, OnMessage Founding Partner Bradley Todd announced

that OnMessage was a finalist for Reed Awards for two ads paid for by the NRA-ILA and

NRA-PVF opposing presidential candidate Hillary Clinton titled "Nightstand" and o'Jet."68

Todd declared that ooOnMessage Inc was proud to partner with the NRA and produce their

ads in this election."6e Both "Nightstand" T0 and '(Jet)1t are prominently featured on

OnMessage's website as "featured" examples of "our work." On February 20,2017,Todd

66 See, e.g., V/isPolitics, Johnson Downplays Consultant's Departure (Aug. 18,2016),

http://elections.wispolitics.com/2016/08/ionson-downplays-consultants-departure.html; Bill Glauber, Strategic

Change Pays Offþr Johnson, Mllweur¡s JoURNeL SBNrtNcI- (Nov. 9, 2016),

https://www.j!online.com/story/news/politics/elections/2016/l l/09/iohnson-lays-out-100-dav-eoals-eop/93538466/.
67 However, the NRA may have continued to contract with OnMessage to produce advertisements for non-

federal races. In 2016, OnMessage also won a Reed Award for its 2015 ad produced for the NRA-ILA, "Tradition,"
which supported a Texas ballot initiative. 2016 Reed Award Winners, Campaigns & Elections (Feb. 19, 2016),

https://wvw.campaiprrsandelections.com/campaisr-insider/2016-reed-award-winners (last visited June 15, 2018).
68 Brad Todd, Two NRA Presidential Ads in Runningfor Top ReedAward, ONMess¿cB,INc. (Jan. 20,2017),

https://onmessaeeinc.conì/blog/012017/ (last visited July 16, 2018). The NRA-PVF paid Starboard $3,344,906 for
independent expenditures opposing Clinton in the 2016 cycle. National Rifle Association of America Political
Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard Strategic, Inc. opposing candidate Hillary Clinton,

https://bit.ly/2md0ynG. The NRA-ILA paid Starboard 5341,724 for independent expenditures opposing Clinton in
the2016 cycle. National Rifle Association of America Institute for Legislative Action, Independent Expenditures to

Starboard Strategic, Inc. opposing candidate Hillary Clinton, https://bit.lv/2uotuNe. Neither the NRA-PVF nor the

NRA-ILA reported any disbursements to OnMessage in the 2016 cycle.
6e Id.7o Our Work: Nightstand, ONMEssecs, INC., (last visited

July 16, 201S). The disclaimer at the end of "Nightstand" states it was paid for by the NRA-ILA.
71 Our Work;../el, ONMBssAGE,INc., https://onmessaeeinc.con/our-worViel (last visited July 16, 2018). The

disclaimer at the end of "Jet" states it was paid for by the NRA-ILA; however, a version of the ad released on

August 9,2016 stated it was paid for by NRA-PYF. See Eliza Collins, NRA launches 83 million anti-Clinton ad buy,

USA Tooev (Aug. 9, 2016), https://www.usatoda),.com/story/news/politics/onpolitics/2016/08/09/nra-ad-hillary-
clintontrump/8 8489624/.
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announced on OnMessage's blog that "Nightstand" had won the Reed Award for Best Ad for

an Independent Expenditure Campaign (Presidential).72Inthe blog, Todd credited

OnMessage for having "brought home" this award.73

On March 30,2017, OnMessage Partner Orrin "Guy" Harrison posted on the company's blog

that OnMessage had won five awards at the American Association of Political Consultants

Awards Conference, noting o'[w]e're especially proud that our work on the National Rifle

Association's efforts to elect President Trump received the highest honor in both TV and

digital categories."T4 The blog noted that OnMessage won Best Presidential Independent

Expenditure Digital Campaign for its work on the NRA's independent expenditures

campaign ooDonald Trump for President."Ts It won Best Ad for Presidential Independent

Expenditure Campaign for producing the NRA-ILA's ad "Nightstand."T6 And it won a

Bronze award for Best Ad for U.S. Senate Independent Expenditure for the NRA-ILA's ad

"The Chair," attacking Indiana U.S. Senate candidate Evan Bayh.7?

72 Brad Todd, OnMessage L\lins Four Reed Awards, ONMESSAcE, INc. (Feb' 20,201'7),

https://onmessaseinc.com/bloe/022020 17l (last visited July I 6, 20 I 8).
73 Id.74 Guy Harrison, OnMessage Wins Five Pollie Awards for W and Digital Work, ONMsssece, INc. (Mar. 20,

2017), https://onmessaeeinc.com/bloq/03202017/ (last visited July 16, 2018).
7s Id.76 Id.77 Id. "The Chait'' was paid for by the NRA-ILA and was released in late October. Theodore Schleifer, NRI
calls for check on Hillary Clinton by defeating Evan Bayh, CNN (Oct. 25,2016),
https://www.cnn.com/2016/10/25lpolitics/nra-checks-and-balances-evan-bavh-hillary-clinton/index.html.In
October, the NRA-ILA reported paying $895,533 to Starboard for television advertising costs related to independent

expenditures opposing Hillary Clinton. National Rifle Association Institute for Legislative Action, Itemized

Independent Expendittnes, January 3 1 Year-End Report, 77 ,85,
http://docquery.fec.gov/pdfl7Ol/201701309041564701/201701309041564701.pd#navþanes:0. The NRAILA did
not report any payments to OnMessage.
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JJ.

So far in the 2018 election cycle, the NRA-PVF has reported $2.4 million in disbursements

to Starboard.Ts The NRA-PVF has also reported paying Starboard $ 1 .1 million for

independent expenditures, all in the Alabama, Montana, and Georgia special elections.Te

Starboard's website (starboardstrategicinc.com) currently includes a generic email address

(info@starboardstrategicinc.com) and provides neither a list of staff nor a portfolio of

work.80 Several of the site's links are broken. According to POLITICO, OnMessage director

V/esley Anderson registered Starboard's website, and the mailing address for the "admin

contact" and the "tech contact" on Starboard's website registration begins "OnMessage Inc.

ATTN STARBOARD STRATEGIC. COM.''8 1

There are many similarities in the language used on Starboard's and OnMessage's websites.

For example, Starboard's "Creative" page reads, "In tbday's fragmented media ageo

advertisers must entertain or lose. Superior marketing carries the day and we strive to

make our ads watchable and memorable. It's a tough battle, but weove got a team with the

talent and the determination to win the figh1."sz OnMessage's webpage describing its

creative services reads "In today's fragmented media age, advertisers must entertain or

lose. The only thing voters hate more than politics is political advertising and we strive to

78 National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Disbursements to Starboard Strategic, lnc.,

2017-18,
https://www.fec.eov/data/disbursements/?two-vear transactionjeriod:2018&data-tvpe=processed&committee-id
:C00053553&recipient name:onmessaee&recipient name:starboard&min-date=01%2F01%2F2017&max-date=
05%2F10%2F2018 (last visited Sept. 13,2018).'|e National Rifle Association of America Political Victory Fund, Independent Expenditures to Starboard

Strategic, Inc. (regularly scheduled reports), 2017-18, httos://www.fec.gov/data/independent-
expenditures/?data tvþe:processed&committee_id:C00053553&is-noticenrue&payee-name:onmessase&payee
name:starboard&min_date:01%o2F0lYo2F20l7 &max_date:l2Yo2F3l%o2F2018 (last visited Sept. 13, 201 8).
80 SrengoARD SrRerrcrc,INc., https://starboardstrategicinc.com/ (last visited Sept. 13, 2018).
8r Spies, suprønote25; see also Starboard Strategic Inc. website registration certificate, available at
https://www.documentcloud.ors/documents/4519937-starboardregistration.html#documenVpl/a437455 (last visited

July 16,2018).82 Creative, SreRsoARD SrRArncrc, INc., https://starboardstrategicinc.com/creative/ (last visited Sept. 13,

2018) (emphasis added).
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make our ads watchable to even the most jaded voter. It's a steep climb up a rugged path,

and we've got a team with the talent and the determination to blaze any trail."83

35. On July 13,2018, POLITICO reported

36.

Despite Starboard's impressive run in 2014, there appeared to be no attempt to

market the new company to other prospective clients. In fact, according to FEC

reports, other than a small sum it received from the National Republican

Congressional Committee-business worth less than $20,000-it has never had

another federal election client besides the NRA. Moreover, none of Starboard's

partners has publicly affiliated himself with the company; four of them have

Linkedln pages, for instance, and their profiles only mention OnMessage. One of
them is Todd, who used the email address brad@starboardstrategicinc.com to

offer the former OnMessage employee a job.

There is also no indication that Starboard has a distinct team of employees

working within the offices of OnMessage. As with the partners, there are no staff
members who publicly list themselves as working for Starboard, though a second

email shows acknowledgment of double duty. Vicki Tomchik is OnMessage's

longtime chief financial officer; the job is the only one she lists on her Linkedln
page. But in20l4, when the former OnMessage employee received an email from
Tomchik, there were two references below her signature. One was OnMessage,

and the other was Starboard. (Tomchik did not respond to a request for
comment.)84

POLTICO also reported that:

37.

A former OnMessage employee who worked out of the Alexandria location in
2014 says Starboard had no separate dedicated presence there. "Beyond some

Starboard-labeled thumb-drives lying around, I don't recall anything within our

office that was called or associated with Starboard," said the former employee

who requested anonymity to avoid retribution.ss

Finally, POLITICO reported that Starboard's/OnMessage's Todd is close friends with Chris

Cox, the executive director of the NRA-ILA (and chairman of the NRA-PVF).86 NRA

Our Story, ONMsss¿cB,INC., https://onmessaseinc.com/our-story/ (last visited Sept. 13,2018) (emphasis83

added).
84

85

86

Spies, supra note 25
rd.
Id,
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38.

39

40.

employees reported seeing Todd around their office, and one employee noted "[t]here was

consulting with fTodd] over high-end issues that were deemed controversial."sT

Suvrvr¡,nv oF THE LAlv

Federal law limits to $2,700 the amount of a contribution that a senatorial candidate or her

authorized campaign committee may accept from an individual donor. 52 U.S.C $

30116(a)(1). FECA also prohibits a corporation or labor union from making a contribution to

a federal candidate. 52 U.S.C. $ 301 18(a).

Generally, contributions from a person to political committees other than candidate and party

committees may not exceed, in the aggregate, $5,000 per calendar year,52 U.S.C. $

301l6(a)(1)(C), and candidates cannot accept contributions from a non-multicandidate

political committee in excess of $2,700, td. $ 30116(aXl).

A "contribution" includes "any gift, subscription, loan, advance, or deposit of money or

anything of value made by any person for the purpose of influencing any election for Federal

office." 52 U.S.C. $ 30101(8)(AXi); see also l1 C.F.R. $$ 100.52(a),ll4.l(aXl); for

purposes of the corporate contribution ban, a contribution "includes any direct or indirect

pa¡rment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift of money, or any services or anything of

value . . . to any candidate, [or] campaign committee . . . in connection with any election." 52

U.S.C. g 30118. "Anything of value" includes all in-kind contributions. I I C.F.R. $

100.52(dxl). An in-kind contribution includes the provision without charge (or at less than

the usual and normal charge) of any goods or services, including, but not limited to,

"facilities, equipment, supplies, personnel, advertising services, membership lists, and

mailing lists." Id.

87 Id,
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42.

43

44.

An "expenditure" includes "any purchase, payment . . . or gift of money or anything of value,

made by any person for the pu{pose of influencing any election for Federal office." 52 U.S.C.

$ 30101(exA).

Any expenditure made in coordination with a candidate-i.e., "in cooperation, consultation,

or concert, with, or at the request or suggestion of, a candidate, his authorized political

committees, or their agents"-is an in-kind contribution to the candidate, 52 U.S.C. $

30116(a)(7XBXi); 11 C.F.R. $ 109.20, and must be reported as a confibution to that

candidate by the person that made the payment, 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(b).88

In enacting the Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act, Congress mandated that the Commission

promulgate "new regulations on coordinated communications" to address, among other

things, "payments for the use of a coÍrmon vendot" and 'þayments for communications

made by a person after substantial discussion about the communication with a candidate,"

and that such regulations "shall not require agreement or formal collaboration to establish

coordination."se Those oocoordinated communications" regulations are at 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21.

Under the regulations, a communication is coordinated with a candidate andlor that

candidate's authorized committee, and is thus a contribution to that candidate's committee,

when the communication (1) is paid for, in whole or in part, by a person other than the

candidate or committ ee; (2) satisfies at least one of the "content standards" in the regulation;

and (3) satisfies at least one of the "conduct standards" in the regulation. Id. $ 109.21(a).

88 Contributions in the form of oocoordinated communications" resulting from conduct described in I I C.F.R.

$ 109.21(dX4) ("common vendot'') need not be reported as received by the campaign committee with which the

communication is "coordinated," absent other conduct. Id. S 109.21(bX2)'
8e ,See Pub. L. No. 107-155, sec. 214(c)(2),1l6 Stat. 81,94-95 (2002); see also note to 52 U.S.C. $

301 16(a)(7).
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46.

47

48

The second prong, the oocontent standard," is met if the communication "expressly advocates .

. . the election or defeat of a clearly identified candidate for Federal office." ld $

10e.21(cX3).

The "conduct standard" of the regulation is satisfied if a communication oois created,

produced, or distributed at the suggestion of a person paying for the communication and the

candidate . . . assents to the suggestion." Id. ç 109.21(dXlXiD.

The candidate's assent satisfies the conduct standard o'whether or not there is agreement or

formal collaboration." 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(d); see also 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(e) (ooAgreement or

formal collaboration between the [payor] and the fcandidate] is not required for a

communication to be a coordinated communication."); BCRA $ 214(c), 116 Stat. 95 ("[FEC]

regulations shall not require agreement or formal collaboration to establish coordination.").

As the Commission has noted, section 109.2l(dxl)(ii) "is intended to prevent circumvention

of the statutory orequest or suggestion' test. . . by, for example, the expedient of implicit

understandings without a formal request or suggestion." Coordinated and Independent

Expenditures, 68 Fed. Reg. at 432; McConnell v. FEC,540 U.S. 93, 222 (2003) ("[FECA]

permits a finding of coordination or cooperation notwithstanding the absence of a pre-

existing agreement.").

Commission regulations take into account that "the assent of a candidate may take many

different forms." Coordinated and Independent Expenditures,6S Fed. Reg. aI432.ln

Advisory Opinion 2016-12 (Citizen Super PAC), the Commission considered a scenario in

which an outside spender (a "super PAC") asked whether its activity would be coordinated if

the super PAC unilaterally informed a candidate about its plans to spend funds to assist the

candidate and the candidate never responded but instead independently asked his supporters
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to contribute to the super PAC. ,See Advisory Opinion Request 2016-12 at7 (Cifizen Super

PAC).eO The Commission ultimately deadlocked on the request on other grounds, but all six

Commissioners agreed that the proposed conduct would meet the conduct prong of the

coordinated communication test under section 1 09.2 1 (dX 1 )(ii). Specifically, three

Commissioners voted to approve an advisory opinion concluding that if the candidate took

actions that "manifest[ed] his assent" to the planned spending, even without conveying that

assent to the spender, the spending would be coordinated "under the plain text of 11 C.F.R. $

109.21(dxlxii)." Advisory Opinion Request 2016-12 (Citizen Super PAC), Draft A at 5

(Oct. 20, 2016).er The other three Commissioners similarly voted to approve an advisory

opinion concluding That'oapayor's action taken after making such a private suggestion to a

candidate and receiving the candidate's assent is coordinated." Advisory Opinion Request

2016-12 (Citizen Super PAC), Draft C at 7 Q.{ov. 2,20I6).e2 Those Commissioners reasoned

that "unlike the coincidental use by two parties of public information, a payor's action taken

after making such a private suggestion to a candidate and receiving the candidate's assent is

coordinated because it represents osomething more than what one might call passive

simultaneous action."'1d. (quoting Hearing before the Subcomm. on Privileges and Elections

of the S. Comm. on Rules and Admin ., 94th Cong. 14f (Feb. 18, 1976) (testimony of

Antonin Scalia, Asst. Att'y Gen'l)). In sum, all six Commissioners agreed that apayment is

"coordinated" if the payor tells the candidate or committee that the payor intends to make the

payment, and the candidate or committee takes action that explicitly or implicitly manifests

e0 Availablearhtp://saos.fec.eov/aodocs/201612R 1.pdf.
et Availabte ø/ http://saos.fec.eov/aodocs/201612.pdf; see also FEC, Certification (l'{ov. 4,2016),
htþ://saos.fec.sov/aodocs/2O1612V_l.pdf (noting that three Democratic Commissioners voted to approve draft).
e2 Avaitable ø¡ http://saos.fec.gov/aodocs/201612_2.pdf; see also FEC, Certification (Nov. 4,2016),
http://saos.fec.gov/aodocs/2O1612V-2.pdf (noting that three Republican Commissioners voted to approve draft).
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assent to that suggestion. See also McConnell, 540 U.S. at22l-22 ("[E]xpenditures made

after a 'wink or nod' often will be 'as useful to the candidate as cash.' . . . A supporter easily

could comply with a candidate's request or suggestion without first agreeing to do so, and the

resulting expenditure would be 'virtually indistinguishable from [a] simple contributio[n]."'

(quoting FECv. Colo. RepublicanFed. CampaignComm.,533 U.S.431,441-46 (2001);

other quotations and citations omitted)). As the relevant statute and regulation explicitly

provide, coordination may be accomplished through either the candidate or the campaign or

their agents. 52 U.S.C. $ 30116(a)(7)(B)(i); 11 C.F.R. $ 109.20(a).

The ooconduct" standard is also satisfied if the political committee paying for the

communication (a) uses a commercial vendore3 to create, produce, or distribute the

communicationea that (b) during the previous 120 days also provided certain services to the

candidate identified in the communication or a political party committee,es such as

development of media strategy and selection of advertising slots; selection of audiences;

polling; developing the content of communications; voter identification; or otherwise

providing political or media advice,e6 and (c) the vendor uses or conveys to the political

committee information about the candidate's or party committee's "plans, projects, activities

or needs" (or information used previously by the commercial vendor in providing services to

e3 Theregulationcross-referencesthedefinitionof"commercialvendot''at ll C.F.R. $ 116.1(c),which
includes o'any persons providing goods or services to a candidate or political committee whose usual and normal

business involves the sale, rental, lease orprovision ofthose goods or services." 1d.
e4 11C.F.R. S 109.21(dx4xÐ.e5 Id. S lO9.21(dX4XiÐ. For purposes of this analysis, the commercial vendor includes "any owner, officer, or

employee of the commercial vendor." lde6 rd. s r0e.2t(dx4xiÐ(A-0.
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the candidate) and "that information is material to the creation, production, or distribution of

the communication."eT 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(dx4).e8

The Commission has found reason to believe that FECA has been violated if the first two

parts of the common vendor test are satisfied. In MUR 5546, for example, the Commission

concluded that, "[b]ecause the first two parts of the common vendor test are met, there is

reason to investigate whether the use or exchange of information occurred as described in 11

C.F.R. $ 109.21(DX4XiiÐ." MUR 5546 (Progress for America Voter Fund), Notification

with Factual and Legal Analysis at 9 (Jul. 5,2005);ee see also MUR 5502 (Martinezfor

Senate), Notification with Factual and Legal Analysis at 8 (May 18, 2005).100 Additionally,

in MURs 5403 and 5406,the Commission found reason to believe that the political

committee America Coming Together had engaged in coordinated communications pursuant

to the $ 109.21(d)(4) shared vendor ooconduct standard" by contracting with the commercial

vendor Dewey Square Group to run a phone bank operation supporting John Kerry's

presidential campaign, since that vendor had previously provided voter identification services

to the Kerry campaign committee. 1d., Notification with Factual and Legal Analysis to

America Coming Together at 9-I3 (Oct. 20,2004).101 The fact that the vendor provided

services to both the campaign and the political committee was sufficient to find reason to

e7 rd. S roe.zt(dx4xiiD.e8 These requirements are not satisfied if the material information was obtained from a publicly available

source, 11 C.F.R. $ 109.2l(dxs)(ii), or if the committee establishes and implements a firewall in a written policy

that prohibits the flow of information about the candidate's campaigt plans, projects, activities or needs to those

responsible for the creation, production, or distribution of the communications, pursuant to 1l C.F.R. $ 109.21(h).

However, in promulgating the rules, the Commission emphasized that *the mere existence of a confidentiality
agreement or ethical screen should provide a de facto bar to the enforcement of the limits on coordinated
communication imposed by Congress. Without some mechanism to ensure enforcement, these private arrangements

are unlikely to prevent the circumvention of the rules." 68 Fed. Reg. 421, 435 (Jan. 3,2003).
ee Availableølhttp://eqs.fec.eov/eqsdocsMUR/00005ABC.pdf.100 Availablearhttp://eqs.fec.gov/eqsdocsMUR/000057D4.pdf.r01 Availqblealhttp://eqs.fec.sov/eqsdocsMuR/0000615D.pdf.
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I.

believe that FECA had been violated; the Commission then investigated whether the vendor

used or conveyed to the political committee information about the candidates' plans, projects,

activities, or needs. Id. at 12.

C¿,usnsoFAcrIoN

The NRA-ILA Has Illegally Made Excessiveo Corporate, and Unreported In-Kind
Contributions to Matt Rosendale for Montana

There is reason to believe that the NRA-ILA has made illegal, excessive, and unreported in-

kind contributions to Matt Rosendale for Montana by financing $404,496 in coordinated

communications.

A political committee makes a "coordinated communication" when the communication (1) is

paid for, in whole or in part, by a person other than the candidate or committee; (2) satisfies

at least one of the oocontent standards" in the regulation, for example by "expressly

advocat[ing] . . . the election or defeat of a clearly identified candidate for Federal office";

and (3) satisfies at least one of the "conduct standards" in the regulation, including when a

communication "is created, produced, or distributed at the suggestion of a person paying for

the communication and the candidate . . . assents to the suggestion." 11 C.F.R. $

109.21(dx1)(ii), or through the use of a "common vendor," id. ç 109.21(a).

The NRA-ILA's communications in support of Rosendale satisfr the oopayment" prong

because they were paid for in whole by the NRA-ILA. Id. ç 109.21(a)(1).

The communications satisff the "content" prong because they are public communications,lo2

disseminated on television, that expressly advocate for the defeat of Rosendale's opponent,

Jon Tester. Id. ç 109.21(cX2).

t02 A public communication is a "communication by means of any broadcast, cable, or satellite
communication, newspaper , magazine, outdoor advefising facility, mass mailing, or telephone bank to the general

public, or any other form of general public political advertising." l l C.F.R. $ 100.26.
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55. The NRA-ILA's communications satisfu the "conduct" prong in two ways.

First, the communications satisfied the ooconduct" prong at l l C.F.R. $ 109.21(dXlxiÐ

because the NRA-ILA (through its executive director, Chris Cox) suggested to Rosendale

that the NRA-ILA planned to pay for the communications, and Rosendale apparently

"assent[ed] to the suggestion." 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(dxlXiÐ.

At a July 2018 event in V/ashington D.C., Rosendale was asked whether oooutside groups

fhave] started spending on your behalf," and he replied by stating, "outside groups have

already started to come in," and named the Club for Growth, which reported spending six

figures on independent expenditures supporting Rosendale in June and July of 2018,103 and

then stated, "I fully expect that the NRA is going to come in" and spend money in the race,

'oprobably, right here, in August sometime."lO4 Rosendale further stated that "the Supreme

Court confirmations are big-that's what sent the NRA over the line," and that the NRA-

ILA's "Chris Cox told me-he was like 'well, we're gonna be in this tut..:r:105

In early September, in the middle of confirmation hearings for Supreme Court nominee Brett

Kavanaugh, the NRA-ILA spent 5404,496t06 on television advertisements expressly

r03 Indeed, by the end of July 2018, Club for Growth Action had already spent, since the June 5ü primary,

510,737 on independent expenditures supporting Rosendale or opposing Tester, and CFG Action Montana had

already spent $618,810 opposing Tester, including, most sigrrificantly, a single $599,910 television ad buy
purchased on July 17,2018. Club for Growth Action and CFG Action Montana, Independent Expenditures
Mentioning Candidate Matt Rosendale or Candidate Jon Tester Q4- and48-Hour Reports), 2017-2018, FEC.coV
http s ://www. fec. eov/datalindependent-
expenditures/?data_t)¡pe:processed&committee_id:C00487470&committee_id:C00669242&is-notice:true&candi
date_id:S6MT00 162&candidate_id:S8MT00234&candidate id:S8MT0021 8&candidate-id:S8MT00275&candid
ate-id:S8MT00200&min-date=0 1 %2F0 I %2F20 I 7&max-date: I 2%2F3 1 %2F20 I 8.
r04 Mqfi Rosendale on NRA support, Sou¡.toClouD, supro note 7.
105 Id.106 National Rifle Association lnstitute for Legislative Action, Report of Independent Expenditures Made and

Contributions Received, FEC Form 5, at 2 (filed Sept. 7,2018),
http://docquery.fec.eov/pdfl388/2018090791215973 88/2018090791215973 88.pdf.

25

56

57

58

MUR749700025



59

advocating against Rosendale's opponent, Jon Tester, with the communications cnticizing

Tester for his votes on Supreme Court nominses.l0T

The evidence indicates that the NRA-ILA's political director told Rosendale that his group

would be creating, producing, and distributing communications supporting Rosendale;

apparently described the focus of the ads (the Supreme Court), and also described the

approximate timing (August, although the ads were ultimately run in the first week of

September).l08 Rosendale's favorable reference to this planned activity on his behalf in

response to a question about spending by "outside groups" provides reason to believe that

Rosendale assented to Cox's plan. This satisfies the oorequest or suggestion" conduct standard

at l1 C.F.R. $ 10e.21(dx1xiÐ.

Second, the communications additionally satisfu theooconduct" prong at 11 C.F.R. $

109.21(aX3) and (d)(a), which is met when the person paying for the communication (a) uses

a commercial vendor to create, produce, or distribute the communication that (b) during the

previous 120 days also provided certain services to the candidate identified in the

communication or a political party committee, and (c) the vendor uses or conveys to the

political committee information about the candidates' or party committee's "plans, projects,

to7 NRA, Defend Freedom. Deþat Two-Faced Tester, YouTuse (Sep. 6, 2018),

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v:AuqwhCm-MZs (". . .In all three votes on Supreme Court justices, Tester sided

with Chuck Schumer and the anti-gun liberal left. AGAINST your right to self-defense. What Jon Tester says in

Montana, isn't what he does in Washington, D.C. . ."); see also NRA Announces Six-Figure Ad Campaign Against

Sen. Tester,NRA-ILA (Sept. 6, 2018), https://www.nraila.ors/articles/2O180906/nra-announces-six-fieure-ad-

campai en-against-sen-tester.lo8 Notably, in July, when Rosendale made his remarks, many observers were expecting Kavanaugh's

confirmation hearings to be held in August. For example, CNN reported that "GOP officials have told CNN they are

targeting a confirmation hearing in late August-an aggressive timeline, but one that would set up a mid-September

vote. Sen. John Cornyn told CNN's Ted Banett that anAugust hearing is 'entirely realistic."' Phil Mattingly,
Supreme Court Watch: What Bren Kavanaugh's Paper Trail Means for the Confirmation Timeline, CNN (July I I,
2018), https://www.cnn.com/2O18/07/l l/politics/brett-kavanaugh-consress-senator-meetinss/index.html. The

hearings were later scheduled for the week of September 4, 2018, when the NRA-ILA's communications were

ultimately disseminated. See Judge Brett Kavanaugh: Nominee to Serve as an Associate Justice on the Supreme

Court of the United States, U.S. SeNars CovtmrreE oN THE JuoICIAnv,
https://www.iudiciary.senate. gov/kavanaugh (last visited Sept. I 3, 20 1 8).
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activities or needs" (or information used previously by the commercial vendor in providing

services to the candidate) and "that information is material to the creation, production, or

distribution of the communication." ll C.F.R. $ 109.21(dX4).

61. The NRA-ILA contracted with Starboard, a commercial vendor within the meaning of the

regulation,lOe to create, produce, or distribute communications expressly advocating against

Rosendale's opponent.

62. During the relevant time period, OnMessage provided several of the regulation's enumerated

services to Rosendale' s principal campaign committees. 1 10

63. OnMessage, Inc. and Starboard Strategic, Inc. are functionally indistinguishable. The two

entities are led by the same people;l11 during the2014 and2016 election cycles NRA-ILA

and NRA-PVF consistently reported payments to Starboard atOnMessage's addresses;ll2

and OnMessage has repeatedly taken credit for advertisements that the NRA-ILA and NRA-

PVF paid Starboard to produce (and has even won awards for such ads).l13 Former

employees say that Starboard had no presence at OnMessage offices, an email from an

OnMessage partner/Starboard director offering a job at OnMessage was sent from his

Starboard email address, and Starboard's partners have never publicly associated themselves

with the company.lla Therefore, although the two companies are incorporated separately,

10e OnMessage and Starboard are engaged in the regular business of content development and thus qualify as

commercial vendors. 1d. at $ 116.1.r10 The enumerated services under the statute are "(A) Development of media strategy, including the selection

or purchasing of advertising slots; (B) Selection of audiences; (C) Polling; (D) Fundraising; (E) Developing the

content of a public communication; (F) Producing a public communication; (G) Identifuing voters or developing

voter lists, mailing lists, or donor lists; (H) Selecting personnel, contractors, or subcontractors; or (I) Consulting of
otherwise providing political or media advice." Id. at $ 109.21(dx4xii). OnMessage appears to have developed

content for public communications by Rosendale's campaign and provided political or media advice for the

campaign.rrr See sources cited Tl9.ttz ,See sources cited tifl 22-23,26-27.113 ,See'lf!f 29-31.r14 See tlfl 35-36.

27

MUR749700027



64

they appear to effectively function as a single vendor. Indeed, after years of NRA-ILA and

NRA-PVF contracting with OnMessage, the individuals in charge of the firm created

Starboard, and the NRA-ILA and NRA-PVF became effectively its only clients,l15 while the

independent expenditures that Starboard created for the NRA-ILA and NRA-PVF supported

candidates that were contracting with OnMessage. In effect, the evidence indicates that

Starboard was created as a shell company to hide OnMessage's status as a common vendor

between the NRA-PVF and the candidates it supports.

These facts and this pattern of activity provide reason to believe that Starboard/OnMessage

used or conveyed to the NRA-ILA information about the ooplans, projects, activities or needs"

of Matt Rosendale for Montana, and that such information was "material to the creation,

production, or distribution of the communication[s]," id. 5109.2I(dX4).Furthermore, the

apparently deliberate routing of OnMessage's NRA business through the corporate shell of

Starboard provides reason to believe that the purpose of OnMessage's creation of Starboard

was to allow OnMessage to use or convey to the NRA-ILA information about the o'plans,

projects, activities or needs" of Matt Rosendale for Montana, and that such information was

oomaterial to the creation, production, or distribution" of the NRA-ILA's communications

supporting Rosendale.l16 For these reasons, there is reason to believe that the NRA-ILA and

rls The 2013-14 election cycle was the only time a candidate or committee besides the two NRA entities listed

Starboard as a vendor on reports filed with the Commission. In May 2013, the National Republican Congressional

Committee (ID: C00075820) made two "media" disbursements to Starboard, totaling $18,500. National Republican

Congressional Committee, Disbursements to Starboard Strategic, lnc.,20l3-14,
https://www.fec.sov/dataldisbursements/?two-vear transaction period=2O14&data-type:processed&committee-id
:C0007 5820 &min date:O l%2F 0 l%2F20 I 3 &max date: l2%o2F 3 1o/o2F 20 1 4 .
116 Although a vendor may establish and implement a firewall in a written policy to prohibit the flow of
strategic information from a political party or candidate to an independent expenditure committee, 11 C.F.R. $

109.21(h), there is no evidence of a firewall between Starboard and OnMessage. In any case, in promulgating the

common vendor rules, the Commission dismissed the idea that'othe mere existence of a confidentiality agreement or

ethical screen should provide a de facto bar to the enforcement of the limits on coordinated communication imposed

by Congress," and emphasized that "[w]ithout some mechanism to ensure enforcement, these private arrangements

are unlikely to prevent the circumvention of the ruIes." 68 Fed. Reg. 421, 435 (Jan. 3,2003).
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Matt Rosendale for Montana satisfied the "conduct" standard by coordinating their

communications through a "common vendor." 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(dX4).

65. A payment for a coordinated communication is an in-kind contribution to the candidate

committee or political party committee with which it is coordinated. 11 C.F.R. $ 109.21(b).

66. Therefore, because the NRA-ILA's advertisements supporting Rosendale satisfy Section

109.21's three prong test, there is reason to believe that the NRA-ILA has made in-kind

contributions to Matt Rosendale for Montana in the form of coordinated communications, in

excess of FECA's $2,700 limit on contributions by a non-multicandidate political committee

to a candidate,52 U.S.C. $ 30116(a)(1), in violation of FECA's prohibition on contributions

to a candidate using corporate funds, 52 U.S.C. $ 30118(a) , (b)(2), and in violation of

FECA's reporting requirements. 52 U.S.C. $ 30104(b).

Puvnn Fon Rnr,Inn

67. Wherefore, the Commission should find reason to believe that the NRA-ILA and Matt

Rosendale for Montana violated 52 U.S.C. S 30101 et seq., and should conduct an immediate

investigation under 52 U.S.C. $ 30109(a)(2).

68. The Commission should seek appropriate sanctions for any and all violations, including civil

penalties sufficient to deter future violations and an injunction prohibiting the respondents

from any and all violations in the future, and should seek such additional remedies as are

necessary and appropriate to ensure compliance with the FECA.
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Brendan M. Fischer
Campaign Legal Center
1411 K Street, NW, Suite 1400
Washington, DC 20005
Counsel to the Campaign Legal Center

David Pucino
Giffords Law Center to Prevent Gun Violence
223 W.38th Steet #90
New York, NY 10018
Counsel to Giffords

September 14,2018

Respectfully submitted,

Center, by
Brendan M. Fischer
1411 K Sfeet, NW Suite 1400
V/ashington, DC 20005
(202) 736-2200

Giffords, by
Alison Damaskos
P.O. Box 51196
V/ashington, DC 20091
(s7t) 29s-7807
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Vnrurrc¡,tloN

The complainants listed below hereby verify that the statements made in the attached

Complaint are, upon their information and belief, tue.

Swornpursuantto 18 U.S.C. $ 1001.

For Complainant Campaign Legal Center

Brendan M. Fischer

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ÚO^rof September 2018.

--ftæ

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ÊU^rof September 2018.

l/rì

Notary Public ffi

For Giffords

Alison Damaskos
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COMMONWEALTH OF V¡RGIN¡A
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Office of the Clerk

1 303530890

March 22,2013

CRAIG M PALIK
1947 BARTON HILL ROAD
RESTON, VA 20191

RECEIPT

RE: Starboard Strategic, lnc.

D:47626674

DCN: 1S03-22-5705

Dear Customer:

This is your receipt for $75.00 to cover the fee(s) for frling articles of incorporation with this office

The effective date of the certificate of incorporation is March 22,2013.

lf you have any questions, please call (804) 371-9733 or toll-free in Virginia, 1-866-722-2551.

Sincerely

Joel H. Peck
Clerk of the Commission

CORPRCPT
NEWCD
crsEcoM

P,O. Box 1t97, Richmond, VA 23218-t197
Tyler Butlding, First Floor, 1300 East llain Strest R¡chmond, VA 23219-3630

Clerk's Offieo (8041 37t-973:l or (868) 7Z¿-2551 {toll-froe ¡n V¡rginia} www-scc.virginia.gov/clk
Telecommunications Device for the Deaf-TDD/Voice: (80tf) 371-9206
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1 303530890
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

AT RICHMOND, MARCH 22,2013

The State Corporation Commission has found the accompanying articles submitted on behalf of

Starboard Strategic, lnc.

to comply with the requirements of law, and confirms payment of all required fees. Therefore, it is
ORDERED that this

CERTIFICATE OF I NCORPORATION

be issued and admitted to record with the articles of incorporation in the Office of the Clerk of the
Commission, effective March 22, 20'13.

The corporation is granted the authority confened on it by law in accordance with the articles, subject to
the conditions and restrictions imposed by law.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

BY T,.-.. 4ù\S
James C. Dimitri
Commissioner

CORPACPT

ctsEcoM
13-0T22-5705

MUR749700034



eFile

2

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

STARBOARD STRATEGIC, ING.

1 303530890

The undersigned, pursuant to Chapter 9 of Title f 3.1 of the Code of Virginia, states as follows:

1. The name of the corporation is Starboard Strategic, lnc.

The purpose for which the corporation is formed is to engage in any lawful business not required to

be specifically set forth in these Articles for which a corporation may be incorporated under the

Virginia Stock Corporation Act.

The corporation is authorized to issue 1,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $1.0000

per share.

The name of the corporation's initial registered agent is Craig M Palik. The initial registered agent

is an individual who is a resident of Virginia and a member of the Virginia State Bar.

The address of the corporation's initial registered office, which is identical to the business office of

the initial registered agent, is 1947 Barton Hill Road, Reston, VA 20191 . The initial registered

office is located in Fairfax County, Virginia.

6. The following individuals are to serve as an initial director of the corporation:

Name Address

Curtis Anderson 1947 Barton Hill Road

Reston, VA 20191

1947 Bafton Hill Road

Reston, VA 20191

1947 Barton Hill Road

Reston, VA 20191

1947 Barton Hill Road

Reston, VA 20191

1947 Barton Hill Road

Reston, VA 20191

Wesley Anderson

Bradley Todd

Graham Shafer

Timothy Teepell

4

5.

7. The address of the corporation's principal office is 1947 Barton Hill Road, Reston, VA 20191

MUR749700035



1 303530890
INGORPORATOR:

lsl Garth E. Beall Date: Marchzz,2013
Garth E. Beall
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2013 ANNUAL REPORT
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

File online at
sccefile.scc.virginia.gov

21 305.3487 --3t 13t2013

ilil] iltil ililt tilt illl rilil ilill |ilililil ililr lrilr rillrl

DUE DATE: 04/30/13

SCC lD NO.: 0636043-2

5. STOCK INFORMATION

COMV

h1
F:â

u,
o
l"ñ

&^5

A
e,ñ
t\*1

1. coRPoRATIoN NAME:

OnMessage, lnc.

2. vA REGTSTERED AcENT NAME ANo oFFtcE AoDRESS: ATTY
FRANK SOFOCLEOUS

706 S WASHINGTON ST

FALLS CHURCH, VA22046
3. ctry oR couNTy oF vA BEGTSTERED oFFtcE:

304-FALLS CHURCH CITY (FILED I

1,000

4. STATE oR couNTRY oF INCoÊPORATION:

VA-VIRGINIA

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO ALTER THE INFORMATION ABOVE, Carefully read lhe enclosed ¡nstructions. Type or
prinl in black only,

Ë0. PRTNcTPAL oFFrcE ADDRESS:

CLASS AUTHORIZED

Mark lhis box if address shown below is correcttr ll the block to the lell is blank or conlains incorrect dala please qdd or corr€ct lhe
âddrêss bêlôw.

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP

ADDRESS; 815 SLATERS LANE

CITY/ST/ZIP ALEXANDRIA, VA 22314

7. DIHECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS: Alt d¡rectors and pr¡ncipâl olllce¡s musl be l¡sled.
An individual may be designaled as both a director and an oflic€r.

Mark appropriate box unless area below is blank:

I I lnlo¡mation is corrocl L I lnformation is ínconect I I oelete lnformâlion

ll lho block lo the left is blank or contains incorrect dala, please mark appropriatÊ

box ând €nter information below: f I Correction I I Addn¡on I I Fleplacement

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

OFFICER LX DIRECTOR LX

CURTIS ANDERSON

PRESIDENT

2OOO COLE RIDGE LANE

CROWNSVILLE, MD 21032

OFFICER¡I DIRECTORII

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

ctTY/sT/zrP

latfirm tharihvt¡ffffirion contained in lhis ieport is acc and complele as of the date below.
.a-q- ß

oF or OATE
USTED IN THIS REPORT

It i9 a Class 1 misdemeano¡ for any person to sign a document that is falge in any material respsct w¡th ¡ntent lhal ths documont be delivered to the

Commission lor fillng.
+ 0qt5s¡rrt 00000qe8¿ 0lsccI

¡F00lV h¡ 16 2ltl

AND
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2013 ANNUAL REPORT CONTINUED

CORPORATION NAME
OnMessage, lnc.

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS (continued)

2l 305.3487 --311312013

DUE DATE: 04/30/13
SCC lD NO.: 0636043-2

All directors and prlnclpal off¡cers must be listed.
An individual maybe designated as both a dkeclor and an oflicer

ll lhs þlock lo lhe lell ls blank or conlainÊ lncol?ecl dala, plgago mark âpDropr¡alo box
ândenlorlnlormallonbelow: I lConection I lRdd¡t¡on I I Beplacemenl

t\å
ts)
É:¿

GI
[,n
L!1

êr
fi)
$

=

Mark appropdate box unless area below ls blank:

I I lnformal¡on is correct I I hlormat¡on is inconect l-l Delete informalion

OFFICER tX DIRECTOR IX

WESLEY ANDERSON

cEo

2512 CHAPMAN LN

DAVIDSONVITLE, MD 21 035

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP

OFFICERIIDIRECTORII

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

Mark appropriate box unlsss areg below is blank:
I I lnlormation ls correct I I lnformation is incorrêct I J oetete informallon

ll lho block lo lhe lelt ¡s bhnk or conlalns incorrocl dala, plo¡rgo tnatk aÞpfopr¡alo box
andsnlór¡nlormâtionbolow: I looneclion I lAdditlOn I I Replacement

OFFICER IX DIRECTOR [X

BRADLEY TODD

coo
722 SOUTH FAIRFAX

ALEXANDRIA, VA 22314

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

crTY/sT/ztP

Mark appropriate box unless ar€a below is blank:

| | lnlormation is correct [-l lnformation is inconect [ -] Dslete information

OFFICERIIDIRECTORII

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

ll lhê block lo lhe lsfl ls blank or conlalns hìcorrecl data. pleaso marl( approprlals Itox

and enler informallon belowi [-l Correction I I Røition I I Fleplacement

OFFICER I-I DIRECTOB [:I

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

crTY/sT/zrP

Mork appropriale box unlêss area below is blank:

f I lnlormatlon ls conect I I lnformation ìs incorrect f I Þelete information

OFFICERIIDIRECTORTI

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

crTY/sT/ZlP

ll thê block to lhe lefl is blank or conlalns lncorract dalR. ploâs€ mark appropÌlâlo box
ândenl€rlnformatlonb€low: I lConection I leOO¡t¡on I I Replacement

OFFICER L-I DIRECTOR N

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

OFFICER I-I DIRECTOB I I

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

AFoo¡Vì, R.y 5 tr,t I

+ 0ql,Ss\q 00000qeôe 09SC(1,
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¡

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

File online at
sccefile.scc.virginia.gov il1ililtilil ilill t]l ilil il|l ffi ru ilil ffi ru illl]

ht
Þå

¿b
frl
ru
üt
l¡l
ü
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1, coRPoBATtoN NAME
OnMessage, lnc.

2. vAREGTSTEREoAcENTNAMEANDoFFtcEADoRESS: fiJft
FRANK SOFOCLEOUS

706 S WASHINGTON ST

FALLS CHURCH, VA22046
3. cffy oR couNTY oF vA BEGTSTEBED oFFtcE

304^FALLS CHURCH CtrY (F|LED r

DUE DATE: 04130114

SCc lD NO.: 0636043-2

5. STOCK INFORMATION

COMV 1,000

4. srATE oB couNTRY oF rNCoRPoFAroN:

VA.VIRGINIA

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO ALTER THE ¡NFORMATION ABOVE. Carefully read the enclosed instructions. Type or
print in black only,

6. PRINCIPAL OFF]CE ADDFESS:

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS Al di¡ectors and p¡incipal olficerg must b€ lisled.
An lndiv¡dJal may bs desþneted as both e dir€ctor end ân oflicer

I affirm conlained in this report accurale as of lhe below

.1,

a
I

b-t- 17
SIGNATUBE OF DIRECTOF/OFFICER

USÎED IN ÍHIS REPORT
CORPORATE TTLE DATE

ll ¡s â Class I misdemeanor lor eny person lo sign â documeîl lhal ¡s lalg€ ln åny mator¡al respecl wltlt lntent hat ltte document bê d€llver€d to he
Commlssþn lor l¡ling.
. olb?llb 0000030¡a olSCCl

¡?00tv Èr lõ ?rl I

CLASS AUTHOBIZED

n Mark lhis box if address shown below is correcl It lhe block to the þlt is blank or conlâlns lncorrect data please add or corrêct hs
adr&ess tFk)w

crTY/sT/ZlP

ADDRESS:

á

?.,

.).

ADDRESS: 815 SI-ATERS LANE

CITY/ST/ZIP ALÐGNDRIA. VA 22314

Mark app¡oprialê bo( unless area below is blank:

I lnlormation ¡s corecl LJ hlorrnation ls incon€ct El Oelete hlormation

It ttle otoct to t¡e left ls blank or conùains incorscl dala, Pleose nlãik opproptiats

t¡ox and enle¡ ¡nlormation below; D Correclion l-l Addit¡on fl Replacemenl

NAME:

T]TLE;

ADDRESS:

CITYISTIZIP:

OFFICER [X DIRECTOR IXI

CURTIS ANDERSON

PRESIDENT

2OOO COLE RIDGE LANE

CROWNSVILLE, MD 21032

OFFICER If DIRECTOF I
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

MUR749700041



z0l4 ANNUAL REPORT CONTINUED

CORPORATION NAME
OnMessage, lnc.

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS (continued)

AFootW â0 3 Jr I

21408.8501--6t5t2414

DUE DATE: 04130/14
SCC lD NO.: 0636043-2

All directors and ptíncipaloffioers must be listed.
An lrúividual may be designated as bolh a direclor and en officer

hJ
tå
åà
€
0ü
ü
ut
Ë
l,å

--

Mark approprhle bo¡ unbss area b€lour is blank:
E Inlormation i9 cor¡ect Ü lnformatlon ls irrconect fl Delete inlormaüon

ll lhs bloct lo llro lêlt b blenl( or conlainS lncofÌ€ct
and onlel lntofÍlâlion below: [-.1 coneolíon

qåle. pþass merk approprhlo bo¡

þnooition Ël Replacement

OFFICEF iX DIRECTOR [X

NAME: WESLEYANDERSON

TITLE: CEO

ADDBESS: 2512 CHAPMAN LN

CITY/ST/ZIP: DAVIDSONVILLE, MD 21035

Ma¡k appfop¡iate box unless area below is blank:
! lnlormalion is coßect E lnfolmat¡m is incof¡oct E Delete inlormation

lf lhe block lo lho len b bhnk or cmrâhs lncorrscl
and oflt€r hformalion bslow; llÏ Conectíon

oFFtcER M O¡necron{-l

NAME: G'R".\u^ Sh qføYL
ÏrLE: {2c^ø\rrøß
ADDRESL: '¡e.s sou\r RÁ

crry/sr/zrp,,$qt trmvÂo mD 3.r go I
dale, ploago mârI approprlele bor

X"n¿¿ltion Cl Replacement

OFFICER I,X DIRECTOR IX

NAME: BRADLEYTODD

TITLE: COO

ADDRESS: 722 SOUTH FAIRFAX

CITY/ST/ZIP: ALÐGNDRIA, VA 2231¡l

Mark appÌopriat€ box unless area below lg blank:
Cl lnlorrnation is corrscl llì Informaüon is íncorrect ,J Delete lnformation

oFF¡CER þ OrneCroRÆ

NAME: f, ry,oÐ^y To9-Pa¿¿
lrLE: P"^n-tfLù(
oooorrr, ßo s \¡àoåsìrn-" rJ<
crrY/sr/zrp,fi",\on(oqy, LA )O g tù

lf lh€ bloc¡ to tlÉ þn þ bhnk of ¿onllalns incorrect dqla.pleæo matf af,proprlale box
aßd ênler intormallon beþìv: tr CoÍectioy[StOOiüon El Replacement

OFFICER LI DIRECTOF N

NAME:

TITLE:

ADORESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

Mqrft approprlâte box unless aree b€low ls blank:
U lnlormation is correct lli lnlormaliør is ¡ncorr€cl lll Delete ínfonnatlon

OFF¡CER XI OINECTOH N

NAME: O Êrä n l'l øYLY¿ré on
lrLE: PaìctfVn-
ADDREss:¿r t¿r T>t¿ø fu
crw/sr/zrP, Al,glrAnå¡Cr c\ \f+ h¡eA

It lho block lo lho þtl 19 bbnk or contahs inc¿rocl dala, ploase mark appropthls box
ondenlerlnfornallonbèlow: lf Corrætion fJ l¿Oltion EI Replacemenl

oFFtcER [: OTRECTOR n
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

crTY/sT/zlP

OFFICER tr OIRTCTOR tr
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

crTY/sT/zrP

r otL?3{b ooooo3ore oiscc¡

MUR749700042
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2015 ANNUAL REPORT
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

SÎATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

File online at
sccef ile.scc.virginia. gov

21 504. 3887 --21 27 1201 5

ffir [üilfi lililtfll lillillilillillllill üilililffi |il|

h¡
lá
tn
G¡

å
ht
6
tr
"*l

f . CORPORATION NAME:

Starboard Shategic, lnc.

2, VA REGISTERED AGENT NAME AND OFFICE ADDRESS: ATW

CRAIG M PALIK
1947 BARTON I.IILL ROAD
RESTON, VA 20191

6. PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS:

7. OIRECTOFS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:

laffirm

ll ¡s a Class I rnisdemeanor lor
the Comm¡ssion lot lilirg.

OUE DATE: 03131115

SCC lD NO.: 0762667a

5. STOCK INFORMATION

COMMON 1,000

3. CITY OR COUNW OF VA REGISTERED OFFICE:
Izg.FAIRFÐ( COUNTY

4. STATE OR COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION:
VA.VIRGINIA

OO NOT ATTEMPT TO ALTER THE INFORMATION ABOVE. Carefully read lho enclosed instructions. Type or
pr¡nt in black only Ëg IJ

ül Cl

Alld¡roctors and pr¡ncípal off¡cers musl bs liled.
An lndlvidual maybê d€s¡gnated as bolh a direc'lor and añ officer.

in this report ¡s accurate and complete as of the date below.

Go orrAìn 11 tr--'(7 â .!,4 t5
PßINTED NAME AND CORPORATE TITLE DATE

ffi

IN
OF

It lñe bþck lo lhe lotl ls blank o¡ ænhirB in€nocl data doeîe üqi,( M¡rt lhls box ll a(broEs shown bglos, ¡s correc,l

-0
-tv
f\ì(t

CITYISTrZIP

ADDRESS: ?:,

lrt

ADDBESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/STZIP RESTON, VA2Of91

Mark appropr¡rlê box mloes ¡rw bolow ls Uânk:

{ tntonnation .s ærrect E lnlormalion 19 irtrocl 0 Oelelo lrfonnalíofl

I tÞ uæ¡ lo lhs lot is uanh of cotìlains incoí€d dola, d€nsa ms.t agpropfialo
box and entor iflormalion bslow:

E Con€clion {aøiøn E R€placamsñt

oFFrcEB E OTRECTOR I
NAME: OURTIS ANDERSON

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDBESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/STIZIP: RESTON, VA 2019I

NAME:þrrìn *J::i: 
E DrREcroR\b

TrTLE: br+nrf
ADDRESSI.f l¿l Qf* Øt'te-

ctTYtsrzlP, frlcycr'nj.i'c^, VA zLg67-

to sign a document thal ¡s tslss ¡n any malei¡al resp€cl w¡lh intent lhal lhe document be del¡veted to

MUR749700044



2 1 504. 3887 --21 27 1201 5

2015 ANNUAL REPORT CONTINUED

l.J
l"¡
ur
€
å
f,J
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\l

CORPORATION NAME:

Starboard Strategic, lnc.

7. DIRECTOBS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS: (conlinued)
Alldirectoa and princlpal oflicors ¡¡¡s¡ þ lisled.
An ind¡vktual may be desþnaled âs bolh a direú'lor erìd an oficer,

DUE DATE:
scc rD No.

03/31fl5
0762867-f

Marlr spproprislo bor unl06s a¡sa bolow ls bþnk:

( lntønatlonisænect tr E ooþle infoñnåt¡on

ll tho bþct lo lh€ left ¡s blank of conlaine lnconær data, ploâse m8fi appfopfitto
bor and 6nt8t lntometþn boloï': 

E co¡odlon E A¡Hiuon t Rephcom€'t

oFFlcEH m DIRECTOR E

NAME: WÊSLEY ANDERSON

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDBE$S: 1947 BARTON H¡LL ROAD

CIW/ST/ZIP: RESTON, VA 20191

oFFrcER E DIRECTOR El

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDHESS:

c/.TYISTIZIP

Mart dpproprhto box unlsss a¡€å bolouv ¡s Uank:

( tntormolton ls correcr fl krlornnfnn is incorred E Delsl€ hfolrnation

It the bbc{( lo lh9 lofl ¡s uank or conlsins ¡ncond d6la, ploâÊo manr Bppropriato

box and onlof ¡nlormal¡on b€lorv: 
E coroction ft Addition E F€plsc€monl

oFFlcER m DIRECTOR I
NAME: BRADLEY TODD

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDFESS: r947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/ST/ZIP: RESTON, vA 20191

oFFrcER tl DTBECTOR E

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDBESS:

CITY/STZIP:

Mark û0o{opr¡ato bor unloss ar€a þglow is blartl:

{ tnlormafion ís conea El lnformatio¡ b incorecl E Oelel€ inlomation

It lho block lo tho lsfl b uank o¡ conlains incorf€d dala. dea6o mat'k appropríalo

boxandonlotlnlornslhnbolow: E Con€ction E 
^dditbn 

Ensplacom€nt

OFFICER E DIRECTOR E

NAME: GRAHAM SHAFER

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDRESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/STIZIP: RESToN, VA 20191

oFFrcEH E DTHECTOR E

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STZIP:

Mark oppIopriato box urfcss area beloty 19 blank:

E lntornation ¡s corrod E lnlornalioñ ¡s ¡ntrBcl E Dêlôle ¡ñformålirr

Í tho blæk to th8 tofl 19 blank or contains lnærfoct dala, deñê marfi app.oglíalo
box and snl€r ¡ntormalbn belos/: 

E conecl¡on El åddiriori O Replæomsnl

oFFlcER m DIRECTOH E

NAME: TIMOTHY TEEPELL

TITLE: VICE PRESIDENT

ADDRESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAO

CITY/STIZIP: RESTON,VA20191

oFFrcER o DTBECTOR El

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STZIP:

FÆ

MUR749700045
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2018 ANNUAL REPORT
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

FJ
**
tr
€
&
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fr
ff.s
trl

-

1. CORPORATION NAME:

Starboard Strategic, lnc.

2. VA REGISTERED AGENT NAME AND OFFICE ADDRESS: ATTY.

CRAIG M PALIK
1947 BARTON HILL ROAD
RESTON, VA 20191

ilil] iltil llilllilil iltil ilil llilililil llil¡ ]il ililflil ilil

DUE DATE:

scc tD No.

03t31118

07826674

5. STOCK INFORMATION

COMMON 1,000
3. CITY OR COUNTY OF VA REG¡STERED OFFICE:

129-FAIRFAX COUNTY

4. STATE OR COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION:

VA-VIRGINIA

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO ALTEF THE INFORMATION ABOVE. Carefully read the enclosed instruclions. Type or
print in black only.

6. PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS:

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS All dlreclors and principal officers must be llsled.
An ¡ndiv¡dual may be designaled as both a dkeclor and an oflicer

contained in this report is accurale and complete as of the date below

(oAnw., C"rç ÀnÁrrsr" e/ø)lt?.
OF DIRECTOB/OFFICER PBINTED NAME AND CORPORATE TITLE DATE

LISTED IN THIS REPORT

ffif

CLASS AUTHORIZED

tr Mark this box ¡l addross shown below is conecl lf the block to lhe loft is blank or conlains incorr€cl data please add or conecl he
address bêlow.

ADDRESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/STZIP RESTON, VA 20191

ADDRESS:

ctvsT/zlP

lf lhê block to lho len iE blank or contalns inconêct data, plsase mark approprlate
box and enler lnformalion below: fl corf€ction I Addil¡on fl Roplac€m€nt

Mark appropriate box unless area b€lo,ì, ls blank:

S lnlormalion ls conect E lntomation is lnconec,l fl Delete informalion

oFFrcER n D]BECTOR tr

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

GITY/ST/ZIP:

oFFrcER I DTRECTOR E

NAME: CURT ANDERSON

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDRESS; 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CIÏY/STZIP: RESTON, VA 20191

It is a Class 1 misdemeanor lor any person lo sign a document lhat is lalse in any material respecl w¡lh ¡ntent lhal the document be delivered to
the Commission for fillng.

MUR749700047



2018 ANNUAL REPORT CONTINUED fàJ
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CORPORATION NAME:

Starboard Strategic, lnc.

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS: (continued)

Mdì.{-ì¿¡n o$Çi<¡rr K Þ:.e¿l.erB

ßc"¿t Fdd
Pãi{Ð¿¡\ rÀa'\û'¡t stc¿¿h

È\¿xandrìa-, VA ¿z 3o \

DUE DATE:
SCC ID NO.:

03131/t8
07626874

All dlreclors and princlpal oflc€rs musl b€ listed.
An lndlvldual may be deslgnated as both a dhecto¡ and an ofllcer,

FM

Mark appropdate box unless arsa below ls blank:

Ã lnformafion 18 corecl I fnlormalion is lnænec,t I Delste lnformaÍon

ll lhe block to the lolt ls blank or contains lnconecl dala, please mark approprlate
box and snlsr informalion below: 

D cor€cibn E Addilbn n Replac€m€nt

oFFrcER E D]RECTOB n
NAME: GRAHAM SHAFER

TITLE: PRESIDENT

ADDRESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/ST/ZIP: RESTON, VA 20191

Mark appropriale box unless area bslow ¡s blank:

$ lnformation ls corect n lnformalion ls lncoÍ€cl n Doleto lnlo¡mat¡on

oFFrcER EI DTBECTOR D

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

ctïY/sTztP

ll lhe block lo the left is blank or conlains incon€cl data, please mark approprlato
boxandsnleflnlofmationbelou': 

D Cofrecilon I Addübn D Replac€rn€nt

oFFrcER m DTRECTOR n
NAME: TIMOTHY TEEPELL

TITLE: VlcE PRESIDENT

ADDRESS: 1947 BARTON HILL ROAD

CITY/ST/ZIP: RESTON, V420191

Mark appropriats box unless arsa below is Hank:

Zl lnlomalion is corsct n lnformatlon Is lncoroc{ [ Dslete inlormatlon

oFFrcER tr DTRECTOR n
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

ll the block lo ths lelt ls blank or conlalns lncorect dala, ploas€ maû approprials
box and êntsr inlofmation bslotru: 

fl coff€clbn D Addil¡on fl Roplac€m€nt

oFFrcER m DTRECTOR E

NAME: WES ANDERSON

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDRESS: 2512CHAPMAN LANE

CITYiST/ZIP: DAVIDSONVILLE, MD 21 035

Mark appropriate box unless area below is blank:

Ã lnformation ls corrscl I lnformatlon is inconecl t D€lele lnformatlon

oFFrcER n DTRECTOR E

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STZIP:

ll lh€ block to ths lolt ls blank or contalns inconecl dala, pleass mark appropriale
box and €nter lnlormalbn below: 

n coffectíon fl Addifion D R€ptacorrFnt

NAME: oRRrN HAR*'JI" 
m DlREcroR m

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDRESS: 414 TYLER PLACE

CITY/STIZIP: ALÐGNDRIA, VA 22302

oFFrcER E D¡RECTOR fl
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STZIP:

MUR749700048
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2018 ANNUAL REPORT
COMMONWEALTH OF VIBGINIA

STATE COBPORATION COMMISSION
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1. CORPORATION NAME:

OnMessage, lnc.

2. VA HEGISTEBED AGENT NAME AND OFF]CE ADDRESS: ATTY

FRANK SOFOCLEOUS
706 S WASHINGTON ST
FALLS CHURCH, VA22O46

ilil1ilrililililililililililtilililililil|llfl llilililllü

DUE DATE:

scc tD No.

04130/18

0636043-2

5. STOCK INFORMATION

COMV
3. CITY OR COUNTY OF VA REGISTERED OFFICE:

304-FALLS CHURCH ClrY (FILED I

4. STATE OR COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION:

VA-VIRGINIA

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO ALTEBTHE INFORMATION ABOVE. Carefully reacl the enclosed inslructions. Type or
print in black only.

6. PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS All directors and principal officers nusl be llsted.
An lndividual may be designated as bolh a dlrector and an officer

tn is accurate and complete as of the date below

z 7/
OF DIRECTOR/OFFICER PRINTED NAME AND CORPORATE TITLE DATE

LISTED IN THIS REPORT

It is a Class 1 mlsdemeanor lor any person to sign a document thal ls lalso ln any materíal rospect with ¡nlent lhat lhe document be dellvêred lo
the Commission for filing.

1,000

ffift

CLASS AUTHOBIZED

tr Mark lhis box if address shown below ¡s correct lf tho block lo tha loft is blank or contains incorecl dala dease add or corect llì€
address b€low.

ADDRESS: 815 SLATERS LANE

CITY/STZIP ALEXANDRI A, V A 2231 4

ADDRESS:

clTY/sT/ztP

ll lhe block to ths lsfl is blank or contains ¡ncorrecl data, pleåso mark approprlato

box alld enter intormation below: 
D Coff€ction ¡ Add¡rion ü Reptacem6nt

Jtáark appropriale box unless area bêlow is blank:

É lnformat¡on ¡e clrrect I lnlormalion ls lnconsct n Delete ¡nformation

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP

oFFrcER n DIRECTOROFFICER E DIRECTOR DU

NAME: CURTIS ANDERSON

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDRESS: 2000 COLERIDGE LANE

CITY/STZIP: CROWNSMLLE, MD 21032

MUR749700050



2018 ANNUAL REPORT CONTINUED ¡%å
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CORPORATION NAME:

OnMessage, lnc.

7. DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS: (continued)

ìtìo n o,l{ieør p Þìrec+-c B.

All direclors and principal oficers must be listed.
An individual may be d€signat€d as bolh a direclor and an ollicer

DUE DATE:
SCC ID NO.:

04130/18

0636043-2

Hffi

tùc5\ca
26 tzs

AnÁ¿rcse n
Cha4rn-n Ln

lf ltle btock to lhs left þ blank or cofltalns lncorrect dala, pleass mart approprials
box ar¡d enler inlofmallon below: 

E Correclion D Addition fl R€placemenr

Mârk appropriatê box unless area bslow is blank:

Fl lntormation ls corr€cl E lnlormalion ls incorrect I Delete ¡ntomalion

oFFrcER E DTRECTOR EI

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDBESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

oFFlcEF m DTRECTOR B

NAME: ORRIN HARRISON

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDRESS: 414 TYLER PLACE

CITY/ST/ZIP: ALEXANDRIA, VA 22302

lÍ lhe block to lhe l€ll is blank or contain8 lncorrect dala, please mark appropr¡alo
box and enter intomation balo¡/: 

n coneclion fl Addition n Replac€ment

Mark appropriale box unless area below is blank:

F lnformalloniscor€c't U hformationblncorect D Delstoinformalion

oFFrcER tr DTRECTOR E

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDHESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

ll lhe block lo tha left is blark or contalns incor€ct dala, ploaso mark appropriale
box and enler inlormalion below: 

fl corocilon E Addnion D Roptac€ment

oFFrcER m DIRECTOR F
NAME: GRAHAM SHAFER

TITLE: PARTER

ADDRESS: 2203 SOUTH RD

GITY/ST/ZIP: BALTIMORE, MD 21209

Mark approprlate box unless area below ls blank:

F lnlormaüon ls conecl E lnlormation is ¡ncorr€cl n Dsbtê inlormaüon

oFFrcER tr DTRECTOR n
NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/ST/ZIP:

OFFICER E DIRECTOR E

NAME: TIMOTHY TEEPELL

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDRESS: 30SWOODSTONE DR

CITY/ST/ZIP: BATON ROUGE, LA 70810

ll tho block to lha lefl is blank or contahs lnconêct data, plêase mart appropriâte
box and onl6r info¡mallon below: 

I corroclion n Addition n Replacemenl

Mark approprialo box unless area b€low ls blank:

R lnlorrnatlon ls consc,t fl lnformatlon ls lncorect D Dslote ¡nlormÊtion

oFFrcER EI DTHECTOR fl
NAME:

TIÏLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STZIP:

oFFlcER m DIBECTOR m

NAME: BRAD TODD

TITLE: PARTNER

ADDBESS: 307 ìIVESTWALNUT sT.

CITY/ST/ZIP: ALÐGNDRIA, VA 22301

Þorvì ¿\son)$rìttLJ Mb ,.tô36

MUR749700051




